
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Chair & Members of the Executive   
 
Friday 24th November 2023 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

The Arc 
High Street 

Clowne 
S43 4JY 

 
Contact: Alison Bluff 

Telephone: 01246 242528 
Email: alison.bluff@bolsover.gov.uk 

 
 

Dear Councillor 
 
EXECUTIVE 
 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the Executive of the Bolsover 
District Council to be held in the Council Chamber, The Arc, Clowne on Monday 4th 
December 2023 at 10:00 hours.  
 
Register of Members' Interests - Members are reminded that a Member must within 
28 days of becoming aware of any changes to their Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
provide written notification to the Authority's Monitoring Officer. 
 
You will find the contents of the agenda itemised on page 3. 
  
Yours faithfully 
 

 
 
Solicitor to the Council & Monitoring Officer  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

1



 

 
Equalities Statement 

 
 

Bolsover District Council is committed to equalities as an employer and when 
delivering the services it provides to all sections of the community. 

The Council believes that no person should be treated unfairly and is committed to 
eliminating all forms of discrimination, advancing equality, and fostering good 
relations between all groups in society. 
 
 
 

 
Access for All statement 

 
You can request this document or information in another format such as large print 
or language or contact us by: 

 Phone: 01246 242424 

 Email: enquiries@bolsover.gov.uk 

 BSL Video Call: A three-way video call with us and a BSL interpreter. It is 
free to call Bolsover District Council with Sign Solutions, you just need Wi-Fi 
or mobile data to make the video call, or call into one of our Contact Centres.  

 Call with Relay UK - a free phone service provided by BT for anyone who 
has difficulty hearing or speaking. It's a way to have a real-time conversation 
with us by text.  

 Visiting one of our offices at Clowne, Bolsover, Shirebrook and South 
Normanton 

 

2

file:///C:/Users/scotc/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/JPNCTJCX/01246%20242424
mailto:enquiries@bolsover.gov.uk
https://www.relayuk.bt.com/
https://www.bolsover.gov.uk/contact-us


 

 

EXECUTIVE 
AGENDA 

 
Monday 4th December 2023 at 10:00 hours taking place in the Council Chamber,  

The Arc, Clowne 
 

Item No. 
 

 Page 
No.(s) 

1.   Apologies For Absence 
 

 

2.   Urgent Items of Business 
 

 

 To note any urgent items of business which the Chairman has 
consented to being considered under the provisions of Section 100(B) 
4(b) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

 

3.   Declarations of Interest 
 

 

 Members should declare the existence and nature of any Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest and Non Statutory Interest as defined by the 
Members’ Code of Conduct in respect of: 
 
a)  any business on the agenda 
b)  any urgent additional items to be considered  
c)  any matters arising out of those items  
and if appropriate, withdraw from the meeting at the relevant time. 
 

 

4.   Minutes 
 

4 - 10 

 To consider the minutes of the last meeting held on 6th November 
2023 
 

 

5.   Ambition Plan Targets Performance Update - July to September 
2023 (Q2) 
 

11 - 20 

 KEY DECISION 
 

 

6.   To receive £100,000 from DCC Public Health to support the 
emotional health and well-being of children and young people 
which will benefit the whole of the district. 
 

21 - 24 

 BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK ITEM 
 

 

7.   Medium-Term Financial Plan - Revised Budgets 2023/24 
 

25 - 44 

3



EXECUTIVE  

Minutes of a meeting of the Executive of the Bolsover District Council held in the 
Council Chamber, The Arc, Clowne, on Monday 6th November 2023 at 1000 hours.  
 
PRESENT:- 
 
Members:- 

Councillor Steve Fritchley in the Chair 
 
Councillors Anne Clarke, Mary Dooley, Clive Moesby, Duncan McGregor,  
John Ritchie and Sandra Peake. 
 
Officers:- Karen Hanson (Chief Executive), Theresa Fletcher (Section 151 Officer), 
Jim Fieldsend (Monitoring Officer), Victoria Dawson (Assistant Director of Housing 
Management and Enforcement) (to Minute No. EX48-23/24), Natalie Etches 
(Business Growth Manager, Dragonfly Management Ltd).  
 
Also in attendance at the meeting, observing, were Junior Cabinet Members 
Councillors Janet Tait and Jane Yates. 
 

 
 
EX42-23/24  APOLOGIES 
 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 
 
EX43-23/24  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
The Chair informed the meeting of an urgent item of business to be considered, 
being Appointment of Contractor to Deliver Hyper-Local Net Zero Innovation 
Programme, which would be considered at the end of the agenda. 
 
 
EX44-23/24  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest made. 
 
 
EX45-23/24  MINUTES –  9TH OCTOBER 2023 
 
Councillor Anne Clarke confirmed that she had been present at the meeting held on 
9th October 2023, but her name had been omitted from Members present in the 
Minutes. 
 
Moved by Councillor Duncan McGregor and seconded by Councillor Anne Clarke  
RESOLVED that subject to the inclusion of Councillor Anne Clarke in Members 

present at the meeting, the Minutes of an Executive meeting held on 9th 
October 2023 be approved as a correct record. 

 
 

4

Agenda Item 4



EXECUTIVE  

NON-KEY DECISION 
 
EX46-23/24          BUDGET MONITORING 
 
Executive considered a detailed report which provided an update on the financial 
position of the Council following the second quarter’s budget monitoring exercise for 
the General Fund, the Housing Revenue Account (HRA), Capital Programme and 
Treasury Management activity. 
 
As advised in the budget monitoring report for quarter 1, a number of Council 
services were transferred into Dragonfly from 1st of April 2023.  These services were 
identifiable on appendices 2 and 4 to the report. 

 
The Council would make payments to Dragonfly for the provision of these services in 
line with service level agreements which were in the final stages of preparation.  A 
service level agreement was also being prepared for Dragonfly who would make 
payment to the Council for the support services they received, such as legal, payroll, 
HR, and finance.   
 
Until these agreements were finalised, and the charging mechanisms put in place, 
the Council was operating with some budgets still on the Council’s financial 
management system as well as being on the financial management system of 
Dragonfly.  Budget managers were fully aware of this arrangement, and it had been 
made clear to them that they needed to ensure the budgets were only spent once 
during these few months of transition.  For this reason, the BDC Dragonfly cost 
centres were showing favourable variances of £0.496m General Fund and £1.027m 
Housing Revenue Account.  This would all be reconciled and finalised as part of the 
revised budget process. 
 
Moved by Councillor Clive Moesby and seconded by Councillor Duncan McGregor 
RESOLVED that 1) the monitoring position of the General Fund at the end of the 

second quarter as detailed on Appendix 1 to the report, (a net favourable 
variance of £1.579m against the profiled budget), and the key issues 
highlighted within the report, be noted, 

 
2) the position on the Housing Revenue Account (HRA), the Capital 
Programme and Treasury Management at the end of the second quarter (at 
Appendices 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6), be noted. 

 
Reasons for Recommendation  
The report summarised the financial position of the Council following the second 
quarter’s budget monitoring exercise for the General Fund, the Housing Revenue 
Account, Capital Programme and Treasury Management activity. 
The Medium-Term Financial Strategy approved in July 2023, stated that it was the 
Council’s intention to monitor the budgets of the services transferred into Dragonfly 
Developments as part of the budget monitoring process. 
 
 
 

 

5



EXECUTIVE  

Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
The Budget Monitoring report for 2023/24 was primarily a factual report which 
detailed progress against previously approved budgets.  Accordingly, there were no 
alternative options to consider. 
 
 
KEY DECISIONS 
 
EX47-23/24          REVISED BDC HOUSING ALLOCATIONS POLICY 
 
Executive considered a detailed report which sought Members approval to 
commence consultation on the draft revised housing allocations policy, and to grant 
the Assistant Director of Housing Management and Enforcement delegated powers, 
in consultation with the Leader, Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Housing, to 
adopt the Allocations Policy in the absence of any substantive changes following 
public consultation.  
 
It was a statutory requirement under Part VI of the Housing Act 1996, for local 
authorities to have an allocations policy in place which outlined how social housing 
located within their authority would be allocated.  Statutory guidance on social 
housing allocations for local authorities in England set out how allocation schemes 
were to be framed - a summary of this guidance was outlined in the report. 
 
The last full review of the Council’s allocations policy was undertaken in 2019, and 
formally adopted in April 2020.  This moved away from a points-based system to a 
band system.  
 
As demand for social housing continued to rise, it was important that the housing 
allocations policy provided a genuine route to access housing for households in 
need.  The criteria to determine access to the housing register and priority banding 
were important.   
 
The report outlined a number of proposed changes to the existing allocations policy 
including the rationale, and also provided a proposed timeframe for completion of the 
public consultation.  Full details were contained within the appendix ‘summary of 
changes’ document attached to the report.  The changes proposed may mean that 
some households who did not have a housing need were no longer eligible to access 
social housing via the Council’s Housing Register.  A full equality impact assessment 
would be carried out as part of the consultation phase. 
 
Following analysis and careful consideration of the consultation responses, a final 
updated policy would be presented to the Leader, Deputy Leader, and Portfolio 
Holder for Housing, for final approval and adoption. 
 
Moved by Councillor Sandra Peake and seconded by Councillor John Ritchie 
RESOLVED that 1) the Council’s Revised Allocations Policy be approved, and a 

public consultation process be carried out,  
 

2) the Assistant Director of Housing Management and Enforcement be given 
delegated powers in consultation with the Leader, Deputy Leader, and 

6



EXECUTIVE  

Portfolio Holder for Housing, to adopt the Revised Allocations Policy in the 
absence of any substantive changes following consultation.  

 
Reasons for Recommendation  
It is a statutory requirement that Councils have an allocations policy in place under 
Part VI of the Housing Act 1996. The policy needs to reflect changes in legislation 
and Government guidance as well as local requirements. 
 
It is important that the policy is regularly reviewed to ensure that it remains fit for 
purpose and continues to ensure that the limited resource of social housing is 
allocated fairly, in line with legislation and with local and national priorities.  
The unprecedented demand on the housing register means the Council needed to 
ensure the policy balances the availability of resources with housing needs.  
 
Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
The policy is considered necessary so that members of the public are aware of the 
Council’s position on allocations to ensure that the bands reflect the statutory 
housing need and that the policy is applied consistently. 
 
 
The Assistant Director of Housing Management and Enforcement left the meeting. 
 

 

EX48-23/24          AWARD THREE YEAR MOBILE PHONE AND DATA 
CONTRACT, PROCURED VIA NHS LONDON 
PROCUREMENT PARTNERSHIP FRAMEWORK 
AGREEMENT 

 
Executive considered a detailed report which sought Members approval to award a 
three-year contract for mobile phone and data services to EE/BT procured via 
the NHS London procurement partnership agreement. 
 
The current mobile telephone and data contract had expired.  BT had also issued a 
notice that the 3G network would be switched off in January 2024 and mobiles would 
likely need replacement before this deadline.   

 
A procurement exercise was completed to secure a three-year mobile data contract 
with the existing mobile data supplier via the NHS London procurement partnership 
agreement framework.  This was a three-year contract and included all the Council’s 
devices, including those used by Dragonfly.  There would be a recharge to Dragonfly 
for their relative share of the cost. 
 
Moved by Councillor Clive Moesby and seconded by Councillor Duncan McGregor. 
RESOLVED that the three-year contract for mobile phone and data services be 

awarded to EE/BT. 
 
Reasons for Recommendation  
The procurement was completed using the NHS London Procurement partnership 
agreement Framework. 
 

7



EXECUTIVE  

EE/BT are the existing supplier which will avoid the need to port existing numbers to 
another network or to replace the SIM cards / devices or APN. 
 
Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 

To do nothing will cost the Council more money as currently spend is approximately 
£54,000 per year or £162,000 over 3 years on the existing mobile contract, this may 
continue to increase whilst out of contract. 
 
The aggregated data tariff will not increase from 250mb to 1Gb per device, likely 
resulting in increased cost by exceeding the data allowance. 
 
The Council would need to provide additional funds to replace devices as there 
would be no technical fund (£47,975) available on the existing contract. 

 
To invite alternative suppliers to submit bids under the framework, this would: 
 

• Incur porting (transferring) all 417 existing numbers to the new supplier, 
with potential disruption to service. 

• May necessitate the replacement of all or some SIM cards and mobile 
phones, this would be a significant workload. 

• Would not guarantee a better quality of service, signal coverage or cost.  

• Result in increased costs to the Council during the procurement process. 

• The frameworks complete comparisons to provide value for money and 
competitively priced tariffs from all suppliers. 

 
 
EX49-23/24          MANAGEMENT OF CORPORATE DEBT – WRITE OFF OF 

OUTSTANDING AMOUNTS 
 
Executive considered a detailed report which sought Member’s approval to the 
proposed write-off of debts in respect of business rates, council tax, housing rents 
and overpaid housing benefits.  The individual financial amounts for write off were 
detailed in an appendix to the report, and the Section 151 Officer provided further 
detailed exempt information in relation to the debts, at the meeting. 
 
Moved by Councillor Clive Moesby and seconded by Councillor Duncan McGregor 
RESOLVED that the amounts included at 2.1 (£157,515.25) of the report, and 

individually detailed in Appendix 1 to the report, be written off. 
 
Reasons for Recommendation  
Given that all available options to recover this debt have been explored, it is 
important that the Council recognises the position and approves the write-off of the 
uncollectable debt. 
 
Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
These are outlined in the main body of the report. 
 
 
 
 

8



EXECUTIVE  

URGENT ITEM OF BUSINESS 
 
EX50-23/24          APPOINTMENT OF CONTRACTOR TO DELIVER HYPER-

LOCAL NET ZERO INNOVATION PROGRAMME 
 
Executive considered a detailed report which provided details of a procurement 
exercise undertaken to appoint a contractor to deliver the Hyper-Local Net Zero 
Innovation [Business Support] Programme (NZIP) outlined in the UK Shared 
Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) Investment Plan for Bolsover.  The report also sought 
Members approval to appoint Nottingham Trent University, which was the first-choice 
supplier following evaluation of tender submissions.  
 
The Council’s UKSPF Investment Plan included a commitment for provision of a 
Hyper-Local Net Zero Innovation [Business Support] Programme, to help develop 
businesses skills and understanding around Net Zero.  

 
An Invitation to Tender (ITT) was issued on 4th September 2023, to commission a 
university partner with previous experience in delivering Net Zero innovation 
interventions to work with the Council to deliver the outcomes and objectives of the 
NZIP.   

 
Two submissions were received in response to the ITT - Nottingham Trent University 
and Derby University.  These two tenders were evaluated and scored on 13th 
October 2023, and following evaluation and a scoring exercise, Nottingham Trent 
University scored the highest, and as such, was the first-choice supplier. 
 
As the decision on this item was urgent, the Chair of the Council had been informed 
of the decision to be taken and had agreed that it was not subject to call-in. 
 
Moved by Councillor John Ritchie and seconded by Councillor Duncan McGregor 
RESOLVED that the appointment of the preferred supplier (Nottingham Trent 

University), and to enter into a contract agreement to be drafted and issued by 
Legal Services and managed by Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited, 
be approved. 

 
Reasons for Recommendation 
To allow delivery of the UKSPF Hyper-Local Net Zero Innovation Programme to 
commence and prevent any unspent UKSPF monies being returned to Government 
after March 2025. 

 
Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited will manage the appointment and ongoing 
contract management of the first-choice supplier, based on the evaluation of tender 
submissions and results of the scoring matrix. This will enable the contract to be 
awarded and the supplier to start delivering against the contract. 

 
The contract will commence 7th November 2023 until 31st March 2025. 
 
Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
To deliver the Net Zero Innovation Programme in house, however this would result in 
the need to employ additional staff members. This would also mean a period of delay 

9



EXECUTIVE  

in the service provision as it would take time to recruit and appoint qualified staff. It is 
unlikely that the post would be attractive to suitably qualified recruits, as it would be a 
temporary post for less than two years.   
 
To do nothing and return unspent UKSPF monies to Government.  
 
 
 
 
The meeting concluded at 1035 hours. 

10



 

 
 

 
Bolsover District Council 

 
Meeting of the Executive  

 
4th December 2023  

 

Ambition Plan Targets Performance Update – July to September 2023 

  

Report of the Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Corporate Performance & 
Governance 

 
 

Classification 
 

This report is Public 
 

Report By Kath Drury, Information, Engagement and Performance 
Manager, Ext 2280,  Kath.Drury@bolsover.gov.uk 

Contact Officer As above 

 
PURPOSE/SUMMARY OF REPORT 
 
To report the Quarter 2 outturns for the Council’s Ambition targets 2020-2024 
 
Out of the 25 targets: 
 
• 17 (68%) are on track 
• 8 (32%) achieved their outturns previously. 
___________________________________________________________________ 

 
REPORT DETAILS 
 
1. Background 

 
1.1 The attached appendices contain the performance outturn as of 30th September 

2023.  
 

2. Details of Proposal or Information 
 
2.1       A summary of performance by Council Ambition aim is provided below: 
 
2.2 Our Customers – Providing excellent and accessible services 
 

 9 targets in total 
 9 targets are on track 
 

 
 
 

11

Agenda Item 5

mailto:Kath.Drury@bolsover.gov.uk


 

2.3 Our Environment – protecting the quality of life for residents and businesses, 
meeting environmental challenges and enhancing biodiversity 

 
 11 targets in total 
 7 targets are on track 
 4 targets achieved previously (ENV 07, ENV 08, ENV 09, ENV 10) 

 
2.4 Our Economy – by driving growth, promoting the District and being business 

and visitor friendly 
 

 5 targets in total  
 1 target is on track 
 4 targets achieved previously (ECO 08, ECO 09, ECO 04, ECO 01) 

 
2.5 Six targets which Dragonfly are delivering on behalf of the Council have been 

removed from the performance framework.  
 
3. Reasons for Recommendation  
 
3.1 This is an information report to keep Members informed of progress against the 

Council Ambition targets noting achievements and any areas of concern. 
 
4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable to this report as providing an overview of performance against 

agreed targets 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
  

1. That quarterly outturns against the Council Ambition 2020-2024 targets be noted. 
 

Approved by the Portfolio Holder for Corporate Performance & Governance 
 

IMPLICATIONS; 
 

Finance and Risk:   Yes☐          No ☒  

Details: 
 

On behalf of the Section 151 Officer 
 

Legal (including Data Protection):          Yes☐   No ☒  

Details: 

On behalf of the Solicitor to the Council 

 

Environment: 

Please identify (if applicable) how this proposal/report will help the Authority meet its 

carbon neutral target or enhance the environment. 

Details: 

12



 

By reporting on targets which supports the Council to meet its carbon neutral target 

and enhance the environment.   

Staffing:  Yes☐  No ☒   

Details: 
 

On behalf of the Head of Paid Service 

 
DECISION INFORMATION 
 

Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a significant impact 
on two or more District wards or which results in income or expenditure 
to the Council above the following thresholds:  
 

Revenue - £75,000   ☐  Capital - £150,000  ☐ 

☒ Please indicate which threshold applies 

 

No 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  

No 
 

 

District Wards Significantly Affected 
 

None 
 

Consultation: 

Leader / Deputy Leader ☒   Executive ☐ 

SLT ☒ Relevant Service Manager ☐ 

Members ☐   Public ☐ Other ☐ 

 

Cabinet Members/SLT 
informed on route via the 
quarterly performance 
process 
 
 

 

Links to Council Ambition: Customers, Economy and Environment. 
 

 All 

 

DOCUMENT INFORMATION 
 

Appendix 
No 
 

Title 

1 Ambition Target listing by exception and aim 

 

Background Papers 

(These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a material extent when 
preparing the report.  They must be listed in the section below.  If the report is going 
to Executive you must provide copies of the background papers). 

All details on the PERFORM system 
 
Rpttemplate/BDC/021122 

13



 

Appendix 1 Full Ambition Target Listing by Aim 
Status Key 

Target Status Usage  

 On Track The target is progressing well against the intended outcomes and intended date. 

 

Aim: Our Customers – providing excellent and accessible services 

 

Council Plan Target 
(Target date 31/03/24 
unless stated otherwise) 

Directorate/ 
Portfolio 
Holder 

 Q2 2023/24 Progress Update 

CUS.01 - Measure 
customer satisfaction in 
all front facing service 
areas at least every two 
years on a rolling 
programme 

Services 

Directorate 

  
 
Cllr Moesby  

On track 

Environmental Health ran their external satisfaction survey for BDC clients – 67 
respondents., 39 people (58%) stated they were either 'very satisfied' or 'fairly 
satisfied' with the service. The service is looking over the report and comments 
received and incorporating action into their operational plans. 

CUS.02 - Improve the 
overall performance 
and usability of the 
website by achieving a 
minimum score of 90% 
using the Silktide* tool 
by March 2024. 

Executive, 

Governance 

and 

Partnerships 

Directorate 

Cllr Dooley 

 

On track 

The overall scores using the Silktide system are Content - 90 (Excellent), 

Accessibility - 92 (Excellent), Marketing - 75 (Good), User Experience - 98 

(Excellent). Scores taken on 10/11/23. 

 

Please note however, that the scores constantly change due to pages and 

documents being added/deleted every day. We are currently looking at moving the 

website to a newer version of the software, after which we will be working our way 

through the website to rectify any issues and reducing the number of PDFs and 

documents on the site as that is the biggest area where accessibility and content 

scores can be increased, but this is a time-consuming issue. 

CUS.03 - Ensure that at 
least 50% of 
transactions are made 

Services 

Directorate 

  
 

On track 

Online Digital Transactions - 43,962 including Voter Registrations, Housing, 
Revenues and Planning online forms accessed via the website. This has increased 
from 41,296 the previous quarter. 
 

14

A
ppendix 1

http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A360%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A360%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A360%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A361%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A361%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A361%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A361%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A361%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A361%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A361%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A362%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A362%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A362%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A362%26type%3DOBJPAGE


 

Council Plan Target 
(Target date 31/03/24 
unless stated otherwise) 

Directorate/ 
Portfolio 
Holder 

 Q2 2023/24 Progress Update 

through digital channels 
by March 2024 
 
Note: Through the 
Contact Centre / 
Customer Services 

Cllr Moesby Telephone and Non-Digital contact - 41,136 all staff assisted transactions. This has 
decreased from 44,175 the previous quarter. 
 
Total contact transactions 85,098 = 51.66% of transactions/contact was via digital 
methods  (significant increase from 48.32% in Q1) 
 
Generally the use of digital services is continually increasing; the use of Self Service, 
Online Housing App continues to increase although the impact with face to face and 
the time taken with customers who require assistance completing an online 
application is requiring some additional resource and planning to accommodate via 
appointment only basis where possible.  
  

CUS.04 - Work with 
partners to deliver the 
Sustainable 
Communities Strategy 
and publish an 
evaluation report 
annually 

Executive, 

Governance 

and 

Partnerships 

Directorate 

Cllr Dooley 

On track 

Thematic Groups have now put their priorities together and finalising their action 

plans. The Annual Document will be compiled over the coming weeks.  

We have currently been working with the thematic groups and updating the priorities 

for each group. This will then form the Sustainable Community Strategy. The strategy 

will be published in April in line with the Council’s Ambition Refresh 2024-2028 to 

ensure that these align. 

CUS.05 - Monitor 
performance against 
the corporate equality 
objectives and publish 
information annually 

Corporate and 
Legal 
Services 
directorate  
 
Cllr McGregor 

On Track 
New Equality Plan and Objectives for 2023-2027 approved at Executive on 11/09/23 
and published together with an evaluation document for 2021-2023. Work will now 
commence on delivering the new action plan. 

CUS.06 - Prevent 
homelessness for more 
than 50% of people 
who are facing 
homelessness each 
year 

Services 

Directorate 

 

Cllr Peake 

On Track Q2 2023/24 - 237 approaches made; 195 cases prevented (82%) 42 cases still open.   

15

http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A362%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A362%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A362%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A362%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A362%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A362%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A362%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A362%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A362%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A362%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A362%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A362%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A363%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A363%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A363%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A363%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A363%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A363%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A363%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A365%26type%3DOBJPAGE


 

Council Plan Target 
(Target date 31/03/24 
unless stated otherwise) 

Directorate/ 
Portfolio 
Holder 

 Q2 2023/24 Progress Update 

CUS.08 - Maintain high 
levels of tenant 
satisfaction with council 
housing and associated 
services 

Services 

Directorate 

 

Cllr Peake 

On Track 

Satisfaction with repairs collected from tenants when repairs are completed is 99.3 %  

The Tenant Satisfaction Measures (TSM) as of 9th Nov from 345 responses is 86% 

satisfaction for Council Housing services. 

 

CUS.09 - Increase 
participation/attendance
s in leisure, sport, 
recreation, health, 
physical and cultural 
activity by 3,000 per 
year. 

Services 

Directorate 

 
Cllr Dooley 

On Track 
During quarter 2 we attracted 97,490 attendances to leisure facility-based activities, 
community outreach programmes and school delivery.  Running total to date, 
201,446. 

 CUS.10 - Deliver a 
health intervention 
programme which 
provides 500 adults per 
year with a personal 
exercise plan via the 
exercise referral 
scheme 

Services 

Directorate 

 
Cllr Dooley 

On Track 
Q2 - The total number of people that started a health referral programme in the 
second quarter is 224, giving a running total of 364 for the year. 

 

Aim: Our Environment – protecting the quality of life for residents and businesses, meeting environmental 

challenges and enhancing biodiversity 

 

Council Plan Target 
(Target date 31/03/24 
unless stated otherwise) 

Directorate/ 
Portfolio 
Holder 

 Q2 2023/24 Progress Update 

ENV.01 - Develop an 
externally facing 
climate change 

Executive, 

Governance 
On track 

Q2 - July 
Bolsover TV - 7 July - Tibshelf Open Gardens. 21 July - Recycling and contaminated 
waste. 28 July - Barlborough Open Gardens 

16

http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A368%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A368%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A368%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A369%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A369%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A369%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A369%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A369%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A369%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A369%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A369%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A369%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A369%26type%3DOBJPAGE


 

Council Plan Target 
(Target date 31/03/24 
unless stated otherwise) 

Directorate/ 
Portfolio 
Holder 

 Q2 2023/24 Progress Update 

communication 
strategy targeting 
communities and 
stakeholders by 
October 2020 and 
deliver an annual 
action plan 

and 

Partnerships 

Directorate 

 
The Leader 

Environment newsletter - 13 July - Love Parks week, National Marine Week, 
Maintenance of Grass Verges. 27 July - National Allotments Week, Residents urged 
to recycle correctly. 
 
August 
Bolsover TV - 4 August - Shirebrook Wildlife Sessions. 18 August - Whitwell Orchard 
Day. 25 August - Dog Management PSPO, Jamie Meets the Bin Men. 
Environment newsletter - 10 August - The importance of bees. 24 August - Organic 
September, Secondhand September, Dog PSPO  
 
September  
Bolsover TV - 1 September - Whitwell Community Orchard Family Fun Day. 15 
September - Bird ringing, Hardwick Hall Walking Group 
Environment newsletter - 7 September - Zero Emissions Day, World Water 
Monitoring Day. 21 September - Recycle Week, World Car Free Day, World 
Vegetarian Day, Seed Gathering Season 
 
Social Media - used to support all of the above stories and to continue to drive traffic 
to the TV and newsletters. 
Website - Press releases written for the bigger of the above stories and included on 
the news page. 
In Touch - July - Grass Verge Maintenance 

ENV.02 Reduce the 
District Council's 
carbon emissions by - 
100 tonnes CO2 in 
20/21 - 125 tonnes 
CO2 in 21/22 - 200 
tonnes CO2 in 22/23 - 
300 tonnes CO2 in 
23/24 

Executive, 

Governance 

and 

Partnerships 

Directorate 

 
Cllr Clarke 

On track 

Job Description and Personal Specification has now been completed for a designated 

Climate Change officer to lead on Net Zero 2050 and reducing low carbon. The new 

position will go to the Employment Committee for approval on the 1st November. 

Once approved the position will be advertised to recruit. 

Note: this target as originally drafted has already been achieved. A more suitable 

target has been proposed for Ambition 2024-2028. 

17



 

Council Plan Target 
(Target date 31/03/24 
unless stated otherwise) 

Directorate/ 
Portfolio 
Holder 

 Q2 2023/24 Progress Update 

ENV.03 - Achieve a 
combined recycling 
and composting rate of 
43% by March 2024. 

Services 

Directorate 

  
 
Cllr Clarke 

On Track 

Q2 (2023\24) performance is estimated based on Q2 (2021\22) Waste Data Flow 
figures of 4,203 tonnes of recyclable\ compostable material collected, equating to a 
combined recycling and composting rate of 45.6%. This will be updated ending 
September when official Waste Data Flow (WDF) information becomes available. 
Estimated performance is based on Q2 (2021\22) as during Q2 (2022\23) reduced 
garden waste was collected arising from the extended drought period that year. 
 
Q1 (2023\24) Actual recyclable\compostable material collected within this period was 
4,178 tonnes as reported by way of Waste Data Flow, equating to a combined 
recycling\composting rate of 46.3%, an increase of 1.6% when compared to Q1 
(2022\23) in the previous year. 

ENV.04 - Sustain 
standards of litter 
cleanliness to ensure 
96% of streets each 
year meet an 
acceptable level as 
assessed by Local 
Environment Quality 
Surveys (LEQS). 

Services 

Directorate 

  
 
Cllr Clarke 

On Track 
Q2 (2023\24) LEQS's established 3% of streets and relevant land surveyed fell below 
grade B cleanliness standards representing 97% falling within the 96% target 
standard set 

ENV.05 - Sustain 
standards of dog 
fouling cleanliness to 
ensure 98% of streets 
each year meet an 
acceptable level as 
assessed by Local 
Environment Quality 
Surveys (LEQS). 

Services 

Directorate 

  
 
Cllr Clarke 

On Track 
Q2 (2023\24) LEQS's established 0% of streets and relevant land surveyed fell below 
grade B cleanliness standards and within the 2% target standard set. 

ENV.06 - Carry out 

144 targeted proactive 

Services 

Directorate 

  

On Track 
Q2: A review of performance achievement has taken place and this annual target will 
be stretched from 144 to 155, with quarterly targets of 39 for quarters 1 to 3 and 38 
for quarter 4. Although the Q2 target wasn't met, we are still over performing due to 

18

http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A382%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A382%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A382%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A382%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A382%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A382%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A383%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A383%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A383%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A384%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A384%26type%3DOBJPAGE


 

Council Plan Target 
(Target date 31/03/24 
unless stated otherwise) 

Directorate/ 
Portfolio 
Holder 

 Q2 2023/24 Progress Update 

littering/dog fouling 

patrols per year (in 

2022/23 and review 

number for 2023/24) 

 

 
Cllr Clarke 

the over achievement in Q1 
 
New Q1 target = 39; Q2 actual = 30 
New Annual target = 155 

ENV.11 - Resolve 
successfully 60% of 
cases following the 
issuing of a 
Community Protection 
Warning by 2024 
 
 

Services 

Directorate 

  
 
Cllr Moesby 

On track 
14 new CPW have been issued. 
Currently there are 52 CPW still live. 
There has been one CPN issued (deemed failure) - therefore a success rate of 98% 

 

Aim: Our Economy – by driving growth, promoting the District, and being business and visitor friendly   

 

Council Plan Target 
(Target date 31/03/24 
unless stated otherwise) 

Directorate/ 
Portfolio 
Holder 

  Q2 2023/24 Progress Update 

 

ECO.02 - Optimise 
business growth (as 
measured by gross 
Business Rates) by 
£2m by March 2024. 

Finance 
Directorate   
 
Cllr Ritchie 

On Track  

Outturn Q2 23/24 = Rateable value 74,009,240. Baseline (Outturn 22/23) = 
66,342,311= difference = + 7,666,929, +11.56%. Significant increase due to 2023 
REVALUATION (previous Revaluation was 2017), as the baseline figure is based on 
pre 2023 Revaluation the increase in rateable values because of this revaluation will 
reflect in the figures produced for all quarters of 23/24. 

 

 

 

19

http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A390%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A390%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A390%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A390%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A390%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A390%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A390%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A390%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A390%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A371%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A371%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A371%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A371%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B64335E5B-7935-445F-B7D9-7D9914C3E650%7D%26object%3DO11%3A371%26type%3DOBJPAGE


 

 

20



 

 
 
 

Bolsover District Council 
 

Meeting of the Executive on 4th December 2023  
 

Emotional Health and Well-Being for Children and Young People 
 

Report of the Portfolio Holder for Partnerships, Health & Wellbeing 
 

Classification This report is public 
 

Contact Officer  Laura Duck, Commissioning and Contracts Officer 
 

 
PURPOSE/SUMMARY OF REPORT 
 

• To seek Executive approval to receive £100,000 from Derbyshire County Council 
(DCC) Public Health, to be used to commission services for Young People Social 
Prescribing.  

___________________________________________________________________ 
 

REPORT DETAILS 
 
1. Background  
 
1.1 DCC Public Health has ringfenced £100,000 for activities to boost general 

well-being of young people in Bolsover District aged 14 to 18, and those aged 
19-25 if they have additional needs.  
 

1.2 The funding will be allocated to Bolsover District Council, as the accountable 
body for Bolsover Partnership, via a grant agreement.  
 

1.3 The funding will cover a two-year period and members of the Partnership Team 
are working closely with the Public Health Locality Lead for Bolsover to design a 
tender specification to commission social prescribing activity that boosts general 
well-being, using a non-clinical approach. The aim of the project is to improve 
outcomes for young people by giving more choice and control over their lives and 
an improved sense of belonging where young people are involved in local 
community groups / activities. 
 

1.4 It is envisaged that a paid Link Worker/Social Prescriber will work with a variety 
of young people but will target: 
 

• Those with complex needs; 

• Young people on the Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services 

(CAMHS) waiting list;  

• Those not in employment, education, or training;  

• Those who are lonely and isolated; 

• Those with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND). 
 

21

Agenda Item 6



 

2. Details of Proposal or Information 
 
2.1 The report is seeking approval from Executive to enter into a grant agreement 

with DCC to receive this allocation of funding, and to work with the Public Health 
Locality Lead to commission services in line with the grant agreement via an 
open procurement process.  

 
2.2 Updates on commissioned activity will be provided within the Bolsover 

Partnership’s Annual Report; and activity will be monitored on a quarterly basis to 
ensure that project aims and objectives are being met. 

 
3. Reasons for Recommendation  
 
3.1     This funding will be used directly to improve the emotional well-being of children 

and young people. This comes at a time when schools are reporting much higher 
social, emotional, and mental health (SEMH) needs and special education needs 
(SEN). 

 
4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 An alternative option would be for the grant to be awarded to another 

organisation. This has been rejected as DCC have awarded this funding directly 
to Bolsover Partnership to ensure that local activity commissioned meets local 
needs of young people.  

 
4.2 Do nothing – this is not considered to be an option as it would mean that 

Bolsover young people would not be able to benefit from commissioned activity. 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
To enter into a grant agreement with DCC Public Health to receive an allocation of 
£100,000 funding for a two-year period aimed at improving the emotional well-being of 
young people in the district through a model of social prescribing. 
 
 

Approved by Councillor Mary Dooley Portfolio Holder for Partnerships, Health & 
Wellbeing 

  

IMPLICATIONS; 
 

Finance and Risk:   Yes☒          No ☐  

Details: The Council will be awarded £100,000 once the grant agreement has been 
signed by both parties. A dedicated cost code will be utilised for the funding so that 
monies received, and monies spent can be easily monitored. The funding will cover 
a two-year period.  

On behalf of the Section 151 Officer 
 

 

 

22



 

Legal (including Data Protection):          Yes☒   No ☐  

Details:  Bolsover District Council is the accountable body for Bolsover Partnership 
and is therefore required to enter into a grant agreement with DCC for the funding to 
be received. Data protection requirements are included within the grant agreement.  
 

On behalf of the Solicitor to the Council 

Environment:          Yes☐   No ☒ 

Please identify (if applicable) how this proposal/report will help the Authority meet its 
carbon neutral target or enhance the environment.   
Details:  Not applicable 

 

Staffing:  Yes☒  No ☐   

Details:  Officers within the Partnership Team will work with the DCC Public Health 
Lead to commission the activity and will be involved in the ongoing monitoring of 
performance.  There are not, however, any additional staffing costs as a result of the 
recommendation.  

On behalf of the Head of Paid Service 

 
 
DECISION INFORMATION 
 

Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a significant impact 
on two or more District wards, or which results in income or expenditure 
to the Council above the following thresholds:  
 

Revenue - £75,000   ☒  Capital - £150,000  ☐ 

☒ Please indicate which threshold applies 

 

Yes 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  

Yes 
 

 

District Wards Significantly Affected 
 

All Wards 
 

Consultation: 

Leader / Deputy Leader ☐   Executive ☐ 

SLT ☐ Relevant Service Manager ☐ 

Members ☐   Public ☐ Other ☐ 

 

Details: Leader, Director 

Executive, Corporate 

Services and Partnerships 

 
 
 

 

Links to Council Ambition: Customers, Economy, and Environment. 
 

Actively engaging with partners to benefit our customers. 
Actively engaging with partners to benefit our communities. 

• Promoting equality and diversity and supporting vulnerable and 
disadvantaged people 

23



 

Links to Council Ambition: Customers, Economy, and Environment. 
 

• Improving health, wellbeing and increasing participation in sport and leisure 
activities  

• Working with partners to support enterprise, innovation, jobs, and skills 
• Working with partners to reduce crime and anti-social behaviour 
• Actively engaging with partners to benefit our communities 

 
 
DOCUMENT INFORMATION 
 

Appendix 
No 
 

Title 
 

  

  

  
 

 

Background Papers 

(These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a material extent when 
preparing the report.  They must be listed in the section below.  If the report is going 
to Executive, you must provide copies of the background papers). 

 
None 
 
 

 

24



 

 
 
 

Bolsover District Council 
 

Meeting of the Executive on 4th December 2023 
 

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN – REVISED BUDGETS 2023/24 
 

Report of the Portfolio Holder for Resources  
 
 

Classification 
 

This report is public 
 

Contact Officer  Theresa Fletcher 
Director of Finance and Section 151 Officer 

 
 

PURPOSE/SUMMARY OF REPORT 
 
To seek Executive approval of the 2023/24 revised budget for the General Fund, Housing 
Revenue Account and Capital Programme. 
___________________________________________________________________ 

 
REPORT DETAILS 
 
1 Transition Information 
 

1.1 As Members will be aware, and as mentioned in the budget monitoring report for 
quarters 1 and 2, on the 1st of April 2023, a number of Council services transferred 
into the Council’s wholly owned company Dragonfly. 
 

1.2 Dragonfly will be operating the services on behalf of the Council under service level 
agreements. The services transferred were: 

 

• Economic Development 
 

• Facilities Management 
 

• Property/Commercial Asset Management 
 

• Property Services and Estates 
 

• Repairs and Maintenance 
 

• Tourism 
 

1.3 The Council will make payments to Dragonfly for the provision of these services in 
line with the service level agreement which is in the final stages of preparation. 
Dragonfly will make payments to the Council for the support services they receive 
such as legal, payroll, HR, finance and audit. A service level agreement is also 
being prepared for this. 

25

Agenda Item 7



 

 
1.4 The payments to Dragonfly for operating our services are included in the figures 

attached to this report. The figures for the payments due from Dragonfly for the 
support services are not yet included because the charging mechanism is still to 
be decided. This will be finalised in the next few weeks and the income calculated, 
to allow it to be included in the MTFP report to be presented to Members in 
February 2024. 

 
1.5 This report is only concerned with the Council’s services and therefore does not 

include expenditure or income relating to the commercial activities of the Dragonfly 
company. 

 
2 General Fund Revenue Account 

 
2.1 The revised budget process is now complete and the proposed 2023/24 revised 

budget for the General Fund is attached at Appendix 1.  The appendix shows the 
original budget for 2023/24 which was approved by Council in February 2023, the 
current budget which reflects budget transfers and approved changes during the 
financial year, and the proposed revised budget for 2023/24. 
 

2.2 The revised budget on Appendix 1 shows that Net Cost of Services has increased 
to £15.854m which is £3.310m above the original budget figures.  This movement 
in the Net Cost of Services reflects committee approvals during the year to fund 
new expenditure, predominantly funded from either earmarked reserves, new 
grant allocations or new income received, since the original budget was set. 
 

2.3 In addition this year, the Net Cost of Services has increased due to the effect of 
inflation largely on the pay awards.  It has also been revised for increases in 
income where appropriate such as investment income.  This is detailed further on 
in the report. 
 

2.4 The original budget showed a funding deficit of £0.018m. The current budget 
position before changes from the revised budget process were included was a 
surplus of £0.282m.  This included the council tax increase of £0.130m and the 
quarter 1 vacancy savings of £0.123m. 
 

2.5 Table 1 overleaf shows the revised budget position for 2023/24.  During the revised 
budget process, finance have worked with budget managers to review all income 
and expenditure.  Additional budget savings were captured as well as unavoidable 
budget pressures.  Government funding assumptions were updated where 
necessary and corporate costs such as debt charges and investment interest were 
also revised. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

26



 

Table 1 

 2023/24 
Original 
Budget 

£000 

2023/24 
Current 
Budget 

£000 

2023/24 
Revised 
Budget 

£000 

Net Cost of Services 12,545 15,813 15,854 

Net debt charges + investment 
interest 

(282) (282) (1,731) 

Net t/f to/(from) reserves + 
balances 

1,210 (2,260) (2,362) 

Net t/f to/(from) NNDR Growth 
Protection Reserve 

(275) (1,184) 955 

Parish precept 3,968 3,968 3,968 

Funding from council tax, 
business rates and 
government grants 

(17,148) (16,337) (16,666) 

Use of GF balance 18 (282) 18 

 

2.6 The revised budget funding gap is £0.018m which is the planned use of the general 
fund balance for 2023/24 as agreed in 2020/21.  This was the £0.261m surplus 
which we added to the general fund balance in 2020/21 to fund the increased 
pension costs for each of the next 3 years. 
 

2.7 The main variances between the current and revised budget positions (£0.282m 
surplus and £0.018m deficit) are given in Table 2 below: 
 
Table 2 
 

 £000 

Staff costs 357 

Planning fees – increase in income (33) 

Leisure income (net) (214) 

Mazars external audit fees 74 

Debt Charges/Investment Interest (1,449) 

Reduction in original t/f to NNDR Growth Protection 
Reserve 

1,184 

New t/f to NNDR Growth Protection Reserve  955 

NNDR growth income from 2023/24 nndr1 (329) 

27



 

Table 2 continued £’000 

Environmental Health 125 

Electric and Gas costs (441) 

Benefits grants (104) 

Insurance premium increase  39 

Non-staff miscellaneous variances 136 

Net increase in expenditure/reduction in income 300 

 
2.8 An explanation of each of the variances in table 2 is as follows: 

 

• We have now had confirmation of the Local Government Services pay 
agreement for 2023-24.  We estimated this increase as 5% on all grades 
but the actual cost was £1,925 on each spinal column point up to grade12 
and an increase of 3.5% for Assistant Directors and above. This along with 
changes to the structure for Dragonfly and new approved posts mean an 
extra cost of £0.357m.    
 

• The number of planning applications received so far this year means we’ve 
been able to increase the income budget by £0.033m. 
 

• The GoActive! Leisure Centre is now operating with membership at above 
pre-covid levels. This means income of £0.214m can be added to the 
income budget. 

 

• Our external auditor Mazars, along with all other auditors in the public sector 
appointments have increased audit fees by 151% nationally, this means an 
extra cost of £0.074m. 
 

• Debt charges and investment interest budgets have been updated to reflect 
the 31st of March position and this has resulted in extra income of £1.449m.  
This is mainly due to the increases in bank base rate we’ve seen this year 
since we set the original budget. 

 

• The extra income from investments is such that we do not need to draw 
down the contribution from the NNDR Growth Protection reserve as planned 
this financial year of £1.184m. In addition, we can now make a contribution 
to the reserve of £0.955m in readiness for future years. 
 

• Our share of the business rates pool - redistributed growth, for 2022/23 was 
not known in time to be included in last year.  Additionally, as is usual, the 
extra income calculated in the nndr1 return for the current year was not 
included in the original budget.  This is completed in January each year after 
the MTFP process is complete.  Therefore, we are able to increase the 
budget for NNDR income by £0.329m for 2023/24. 
 

28



 

• The cost of the pay award and other expenditure for the Environmental 
Health service have increased by £0.125m for 2023/24. 

 

• Prices of gas and electric have fallen since the budget was prepared 
meaning we can now reduce the budgets by £0.441m for this year. 

 

• The net movement on the difference between the amount we are estimating 
to pay out and the amount we are due to receive for housing and council 
tax benefit has meant a reduction of £0.104m in the budget. 
 

• The insurance premium the Council has to pay for staff, premises and motor  
has increased by 40% this year, we have therefore had to increase general 
fund budgets by £0.039m. 

 

• The net movement in miscellaneous income and expenditure is a cost to 
general fund of £0.136m.  This is made up of a number of small increases 
and decreases. 

 
2.9 The final position on the general fund revenue account will clearly be dependent 

on the actual financial performance out-turning in line with the revised budgets as 
there may be further costs and/or savings identified as the year progresses.  
Appendix 2 details the net cost of each cost centre by Directorate. 
 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

 
2.10 The Housing Revenue Account revised budget for 2023/24 is set out in Appendix 

3 and 4 to this report. 
 
Expenditure 
 

2.11 Expenditure on the HRA is showing a net decrease against current budgets of 
£0.216m. 
 

2.12 As discussed in 2.8, the Local Government Services pay agreement for 2023-24 
has been settled. The extra cost over and above the 5% we budgeted has been 
met from the vacancy savings we were able to remove from the budgets. 

 
2.13 The approval during the year of new expenditure to be funded by earmarked HRA 

reserves relates to £0.210m.  The council tax liability on the management of void 
properties being held for capital schemes £0.110m, is now being funded by the 
development reserve. As is the equipment which needs to be purchased to enable 
the lifeline service to continue working after the digital switch over has happened, 
this is £0.100m. 
 

Income 
 

2.14 In total, income is £0.222m lower than the current budget.   
 

2.15 Dwelling rents have been reduced by £0.270m since the original budget.  The 
number of empty properties (voids) is higher than originally estimated.  Members 

29



 

will be aware, this year voids have been between 3.64% in quarter 1 and 3.56% 
by quarter 2 which is higher than the original estimate of 3%. 
 

2.16 The revised budget has been set with an estimate for voids of 3.35% for the 
remainder of 2023/24, which is based on the actual figure for 32 weeks.  This is to 
allow officers to embed new operating methods now bought in, on managing 
properties being held intentionally empty for capital schemes, to reduce the 
number of voids at any one time. 
 

2.17 Income from Non-dwelling rents is also slightly reduced, again in preparation for 
capital schemes to take place. 
 
Appropriations 
 

2.18 The movement in the debt charges and investment interest budgets has meant a 
net increase in cost to the HRA of £0.403m.  This is due to the increase in bank 
base rate and is a cost to the HRA because it has more debt than investments 
which is currently the opposite of the general fund position. 
 

2.19 The borrowing currently being undertaken by the HRA to finance capital schemes 
is in danger of making the 30-year business plan unsustainable. As interest rates 
are now thought to be on the rise again this could present a real risk to the HRA if 
the borrowing continues. Before any new borrowing is considered there needs to 
be an assessment to see if something currently included in the capital programme 
to be funded by borrowing, can be removed. 
 

2.20 In light of the proposed changes detailed above, it has been necessary to increase 
the planned contribution from the HRA balance by £0.200m, to ensure the HRA is 
still in balance.  It is anticipated that this can be repaid to the HRA balance next 
financial year as part of the MTFP which is currently being prepared. 
 

Capital Programme 

 

2.21 The Council’s capital programme is shown in Appendix 5.  It has been updated 
from the original budgets to reflect approvals within the year and the profiling of 
the individual schemes following approved changes by Members and from detailed 
discussions with budget officers. 
 

2.22 As part of the revised budget process, officers have estimated the likely level of 
spend in the current financial year. The proposed estimated outturn for 2023/24 is 
therefore a budget of £32.294m. 
 

2.23 The changes that are shown in the revised capital programme mean that the 
financing is adjusted accordingly to meet the anticipated spend.  There are no 
issues to report with regard to the financing of the 2023/24 capital programme. 
 

3 Reasons for Recommendation  
 
3.1 The purpose of this report is to set revised budgets as early as possible within the 

financial year to ensure that identified budget savings are realised, that all budget 
managers are working to the revised budgets and to allow any planned changes 
to be delivered.     

30



 

 
4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 General Fund and HRA 
 Any surplus on the Council’s two main revenue accounts will result in an increase 

in financial balances at the year-end which are available to protect services at a 
time of declining central government support.  It is proposed that additional 
resources would be transferred to reserves in preparation for future expenditure. 

 
4.2 Capital 
 There are no alternative options being considered with regard to the proposed 

allocations from the Capital Programme budget as it ensures the Council’s assets 
meet health and safety requirements in that they are maintained in a fit for purpose 
state that ensures they remain fully operational. 

 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

1 That Executive approves the revised General Fund budget for 2023/24 as set 
out in Appendix 1 and detailed in Appendix 2. 

2 That Executive approves the revised HRA budget for 2023/24 as set out in 
Appendix 3 and 4. 

3 That Executive approves the revised Capital Programme for 2023/24 as set out 
within Appendix 5. 
 

Approved by Councillor Clive Moesby, Portfolio Holder for Resources 
 

IMPLICATIONS; 
 

Finance and Risk:   Yes☐          No ☒  

Details: The issue of Financial Risk is covered throughout the report.  In addition, 
however, it should be noted that the risk of not achieving a balanced budget is 
outlined as a key risk within the Council’s Strategic Risk Register.   
 
The reductions in government funding on the general fund are currently being 
managed by contributions to and from the National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) 
Growth Protection Reserve. The HRA does not have the use of this reserve and needs 
to be carefully managed to ensure it continues to be sustainable over the life of the 
30-year business plan. This includes any borrowing undertaken for the capital 
programme. 

On behalf of the Section 151 Officer 
 

Legal (including Data Protection):          Yes☐   No ☒  

Details: There are no legal or data protection issues arising directly from this report. 

 

On behalf of the Solicitor to the Council 

 
 
 
 

31



 

Staffing:  Yes☐  No ☒   

Details: There are no human resource issues arising directly out of this report. 
 

On behalf of the Head of Paid Service 

 
DECISION INFORMATION 
 

Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a significant impact on 
two or more District wards or which results in income or expenditure to the 
Council above the following thresholds:  
 

Revenue - £75,000   ☐  Capital - £150,000  ☐ 

☒ Please indicate which threshold applies 

 

No 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  

No 
 

 

District Wards Significantly Affected 
 

None 
 
 

Consultation: 

Leader / Deputy Leader ☐   Executive ☐ 

SLT ☐ Relevant Service Manager ☐ 

Members ☐   Public ☐ Other ☐ 

 

Details: 
 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Finance 

 

Links to Council Ambition: Customers, Economy and Environment. 
 

  

 

DOCUMENT INFORMATION 
 

Appendix 
No 
 

Title 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 

General Fund Summary 
General Fund Detail 
HRA Summary 
HRA Detail 
Capital Programme 

 

Background Papers 

(These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a material extent when 
preparing the report.  They must be listed in the section below.  If the report is going 
to Executive you must provide copies of the background papers). 

 
None 

 

32



BOLSOVER DISTRICT COUNCIL
GENERAL FUND 

Original Current Revised

Description Budget Budget Budget

2022/23 2022/23 2022/23

£ £ £

Community Services Directorate 8,547,247 9,354,607 9,316,863

Corporate Resources Directorate 2,079,281 2,842,030 2,948,888

Dragonfly Services 1,912,055 2,239,589 2,038,885

S106 Expenditure

Community Services Directorate 5,976 1,376,553 1,549,553

Net Cost of Services 12,544,559 15,812,779 15,854,189

Debt Charges 635,134 635,134 805,393 

Investment Interest (917,432) (917,432) (2,536,445)

Appropriations:

Contributions to Reserves 1,661,746 1,661,746 1,668,412 

Contribution from Earmarked Reserves (255,033) (703,998) (732,006)

Contribution (from)/to NNDR Growth Protection Reserve (274,591) (1,183,708) 955,087 

Contribution from Grant Accounts (5,720) (5,720) (6,320)

Contribution from Revenue Grants 0 (1,418,799) (1,418,799)

Contribution (from)/to Holding Accounts (184,902) (416,636) (324,053)

Contribution from S106 Holding A/cs (5,976) (1,376,553) (1,549,553)

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 13,197,785 12,086,813 12,715,905 

Parish Precepts 3,968,503 3,968,503 3,968,503 

TOTAL SPENDING REQUIREMENT 17,166,288 16,055,316 16,684,408 

Revenue Support Grant (1,473,016) (1,473,016) (1,473,016)

Business Rates Retention (6,549,986) (5,610,561) (5,939,121)

New Homes Bonus Grant (677,892) (677,892) (677,892)

2022/23 Services Grant (113,676) (113,676) (113,676)

Funding Guarantee Grant (40,837) (40,837) (40,837)

COUNCIL TAX - BDC precept (4,380,450) (4,511,361) (4,511,361)

Council tax - Parish element from above (3,968,503) (3,968,503) (3,968,503)

Council Tax Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit 0 (30,308) (30,308)

Council Tax spread of 20/21 Covid loss 56,416 56,416 56,416 

COVID-19 Related Support 0 32,235 32,235 

TOTAL FUNDING (17,147,944) (16,337,503) (16,666,063)

FUNDING GAP / (SURPLUS) 18,344 (282,187) 18,345 

S:\Governance and Monitoring\Governance\BDC\RES\Staff\COMMITTEE\Admin\Executive\2023-2024\f - 041223\Theresa 

reports\Appendix 1 GF summary 24/11/23

33

Appendix 1



List of General Fund net budgets per cost centre per directorate

Original Current Revised

Budget Budget Budget

2023/24 2023/24 2023/24

£ £ £

G007 Community Safety - Crime Reduction 72,148 72,148 73,086

G010 Neighbourhood Management 74,026 74,026 80,397

G013 Community Action Network 359,304 363,649 366,291

G017 Private Sector Housing Renewal 89,485 89,485 88,561

G018 Environmental Health Covid Team 117 24,896 48,265

G020 Public Health (70,000) (70,000) (70,000)

G021 Pollution Reduction 245,679 245,679 264,609

G022 Env Health - Health + Safety 0 0 (230)

G023 Pest Control 36,278 36,278 60,342

G024 Street Cleansing 406,533 406,533 390,381

G025 Food, Health & Safety 132,740 132,740 144,546

G026 Animal Welfare 103,051 103,051 143,738

G027 Emergency Planning 17,392 17,392 17,392

G028 Domestic Waste Collection 1,221,190 1,221,190 1,317,103

G031 S106 - Biodiversity 0 8,030 8,030

G032 Grounds Maintenance 993,334 993,334 1,011,090

G033 Vehicle Fleet 1,106,368 1,098,477 1,172,925

G036 Environmental Health Mgmt & Admin 290,627 290,627 308,334

G037 BDC Air Quality NO2 0 375,000 375,000

G046 Homelessness 166,277 232,479 177,582

G048 Town Centre Housing (10,600) (10,600) (10,600)

G049 Temporary Accommodation Officer 0 27,501 28,716

G053 Licensing 44,398 48,597 56,737

G056 Land Charges 20,653 20,653 26,312

G059 Neighbourhood Planning Referendum 0 4,750 9,419

G061 Bolsover Wellness Programme 45,803 64,884 84,139

G062 Extreme Wheels 4,223 4,223 (7,011)

G064 Bolsover Sport 158,721 152,762 157,675

G065 Parks, Playgrounds & Open Spaces 45,192 45,192 48,865

G067 Shirebrook TC Regeneration 0 40,000 40,000

G068 Biodiversity NG & LNR 0 65,131 65,131

G069 Arts Projects 56,532 56,532 56,857

G070 Outdoor Sports & Recreation Facilities 48,071 44,756 39,017

G072 Leisure Services Mgmt & Admin 290,609 290,609 247,405

G073 Planning Policy 346,738 261,989 243,548

S:\Governance and Monitoring\Governance\BDC\RES\Staff\COMMITTEE\Admin\Executive\2023-2024\f - 

041223\Theresa reports\Appendix 2 GF detail 24/11/2334

Appendix 2



List of General Fund net budgets per cost centre per directorate

Original Current Revised

Budget Budget Budget

2023/24 2023/24 2023/24

£ £ £

G074 Planning Development Control 96,770 99,858 88,941

G076 Planning Enforcement 141,818 99,557 85,563

G079 Senior Urban Design Officer 63,372 62,013 51,452

G097 Groundwork & Drainage Operations 101,160 101,160 94,830

G106 Housing Anti-Social Behaviour 156,824 153,945 161,142

G113 Parenting Practitioner 43,689 43,689 43,624

G123 Riverside Depot 291,337 294,733 250,425

G124 Street Servs Mgmt & Admin 81,691 77,431 63,382

G125 S106 Percent for Art 0 35,104 35,104

G126 S106 Formal and Informal Recreation 5,976 272,963 283,672

G131 Bolsover Community Woodlands Project 5,852 5,852 0

G132 Planning Conservation 40,684 53,061 50,256

G135 Domestic Violence Worker 50,149 50,149 50,615

G139 Proptech Engagement Fund 0 308,204 304,450

G142 Community Safety - CCTV 2,000 2,000 2,000

G143 Housing Strategy 56,999 45,631 51,193

G144 Enabling (Housing) 42,266 42,266 30,024

G146 Pleasley Vale Outdoor Activity Centre 58,257 57,407 55,127

G148 Commercial Waste (162,600) (162,600) (189,160)

G149 Recycling 358,979 358,979 310,391

G153 Housing Advice 15,734 15,734 19,349

G170 S106 Outdoor Sports 0 322,099 484,390

G172 S106 - Affordable Housing 0 1,116 1,116

G176 Affordable Warmth 23,339 23,339 15,627

G179 School Sports Programme 1,600 2,020 (94)

G196 Assistant Director of Planning 0 0 35,891

G198 Assistant Director of Housing (GF) 38,235 38,235 37,620

G199 Assistant Director of Street Scene 95,853 95,853 27,989

G202 Assistant Director of Leisure, Health + Wellbeing 0 0 35,891

G209 Tourism & Culture 0 3,225 3,225

G210 Strategic Director of Services 0 0 77,533

G223 Contracts Administrator 54,766 54,766 55,294

G226 S106 - Highways 0 569,000 569,000

G227 S106 - Public Health 0 168,241 168,241

G228 Go Active Clowne Leisure  Centre 494,104 494,104 334,587

S:\Governance and Monitoring\Governance\BDC\RES\Staff\COMMITTEE\Admin\Executive\2023-2024\f - 

041223\Theresa reports\Appendix 2 GF detail 24/11/2335



List of General Fund net budgets per cost centre per directorate

Original Current Revised

Budget Budget Budget

2023/24 2023/24 2023/24

£ £ £

G229 Housing Standards 0 0 (496)

G238 HR Health + Safety 98,480 105,033 110,329

G239 Housing + Comm Safety Fixed Penalty Acc 1,000 5,000 4,241

Total for Community Services Directorate 8,553,223 10,731,160 10,866,416

G001 Audit Services 134,378 134,378 135,982

G002 I.C.T. 1,115,654 1,120,654 1,082,674

G003 Communications, Marketing + Design 309,089 318,742 317,966

G006 Partnership, Strategy & Policy 427,640 515,703 565,104

G011 Director for Executive and Partnerships 94,853 94,853 108,974

G012 Community Champions 1,880 9,755 15,493

G014 Customer Contact Service 889,970 882,920 907,355

G015 Customer Service + Improvement 148,693 148,693 155,593

G016 Skills Audit 0 26,733 26,733

G038 Concessionary Fares & TV Licenses (11,603) (11,603) (11,653)

G039 Children and YP Emotional Well-being 50,000 50,000 50,000

G040 Corporate Management 227,667 227,667 299,208

G041 Non Distributed Costs 278,371 278,371 274,284

G043 Chief Executive Officer 157,567 173,519 180,444

G044 Financial Services 375,575 390,968 400,109

G051 Senior Valuer 62,748 62,748 63,533

G052 Human Resources 218,079 217,973 291,438

G054 Electoral Registration 177,722 184,909 192,938

G055 Democratic Representation & Management 536,556 536,556 545,514

G057 District Council Elections 53,000 53,000 78,928

G058 Democratic Services 246,847 231,545 242,656

G060 Legal Services 370,252 412,834 377,163

G086 Alliance 5,250 5,250 5,250

G100 Benefits 426,231 425,723 391,816

G103 Council Tax / NNDR 472,614 449,408 440,633

G105 Council Tax Energy Rebate 0 114,159 114,159

G107 EBSS Alternative Funding Grant 0 313,840 313,840

G111 Shared Procurement 52,452 54,452 53,464

G117 Payroll 132,693 132,799 98,687

S:\Governance and Monitoring\Governance\BDC\RES\Staff\COMMITTEE\Admin\Executive\2023-2024\f - 

041223\Theresa reports\Appendix 2 GF detail 24/11/2336



List of General Fund net budgets per cost centre per directorate

Original Current Revised

Budget Budget Budget

2023/24 2023/24 2023/24

£ £ £

G118 Union Convenor 0 30,154 32,717

G155 Customer Services 35,048 35,048 27,768

G157 Controlling Migration Fund 14,621 14,621 4,000

G161 Rent Rebates (38,490) (38,490) (69,553)

G162 Rent Allowances 16,019 16,019 34,012

G164 Support Recharges (5,202,089) (5,202,089) (5,202,089)

G168 Multifunctional Printers 37,600 37,600 37,600

G192 Scrutiny 26,334 26,334 26,669

G195 Director of Governance + Monitoring Officer 102,474 102,474 117,088

G197 Director of Finance + Section 151 Officer 102,022 102,022 116,475

G211 UK Shared Prosperity Fund 0 51,096 51,096

G216 Raising Aspirations 0 7,500 7,500

G218 I-Venture/Namibia Bound 13,011 17,275 17,275

G220 Locality Funding (1,269) (27,097) (27,097)

G241 Community Rail 19,822 88,096 32,224

G247 Culture Arts Corridor 0 3,000 3,000

G249 Cycle & Explore 0 6,918 6,918

G251 Youth Based Intervention Programme 0 15,000 15,000

Total for Corporate Resources Directorate 2,079,281 2,842,030 2,948,888

G077 LGA Housing Advisers Programme (HAP) 0 25,000 25,000

G078 LGA Net Zero Innovation Programme (NZIP) 0 30,172 30,172

G080 Engineering Services (ESRM) 97,936 97,936 97,730

G082 Tourism Promotion + Development 54,766 55,230 49,558

G083 Building Control Consortium 55,000 55,000 55,000

G085 Economic Development 29,425 49,854 49,854

G088 Derbyshire Economic Partnership 15,000 15,000 15,000

G089 Premises Development (66,033) (5,048) (1,219)

G090 Pleasley Vale Mills (158,939) (108,870) (101,111)

G092 Pleasley Vale Electricity Trading (40,000) (40,000) (37,903)

G095 Estates + Property 495,344 494,944 543,265

G096 Building Cleaning (General) 114,376 115,376 121,505

G099 Catering 500 500 500

G109 Chief Executive Officer - Dragonfly 158,024 87,090 59,576

G110 Director of Development - Dragonfly 97,484 53,019 35,428

S:\Governance and Monitoring\Governance\BDC\RES\Staff\COMMITTEE\Admin\Executive\2023-2024\f - 

041223\Theresa reports\Appendix 2 GF detail 24/11/2337



List of General Fund net budgets per cost centre per directorate

Original Current Revised

Budget Budget Budget

2023/24 2023/24 2023/24

£ £ £

G114 Strategic Investment Fund 0 105,256 105,256

G133 The Tangent Business Hub 16,971 16,096 (2,405)

G138 Bolsover TC Regeneration Scheme 0 16,029 16,029

G151 Street Lighting 108,880 108,880 77,639

G156 The Arc 395,288 393,863 286,743

G167 Facilities Management 11,838 17,148 16,790

G169 Closed Churchyards 10,000 10,000 10,000

G188 Cotton Street Contact Centre 42,445 42,020 36,634

G193 Economic Development Management + Admin 461,521 490,053 441,424

G200 Director of Construction - Dragonfly 12,229 10,491 3,870

G212 Net Zero Hyper Innovation Programme UK SPF 0 57,509 57,509

G222 Visitor Economy Business Support 0 17,005 17,005

G246 Business Grants Growth Scheme 0 30,036 30,036

Total for Dragonfly Services 1,912,055 2,239,589 2,038,885

Total Net Cost of Services 12,544,559 15,812,779 15,854,189

S:\Governance and Monitoring\Governance\BDC\RES\Staff\COMMITTEE\Admin\Executive\2023-2024\f - 

041223\Theresa reports\Appendix 2 GF detail 24/11/2338



Housing Revenue Account
Original Current Revised

Budget Budget Budget

2023/24 2023/24 2023/24

£ £ £

Expenditure

Repairs and Maintenance 6,098,196 6,048,642 6,094,603

Director of Property + Construction - Dragonfly 48,744 48,744 0

Rents, Rates, Taxes + Other Charges 225,802 225,802 225,802

Supervision and Management 6,529,792 6,677,115 6,665,661

Special Services 999,483 1,003,483 680,071

Housing Related Support - Wardens 775,953 775,953 761,425

Housing Related Support - Central Control 388,063 388,063 515,092

Tenants Participation 85,261 85,261 88,930

New Build Schemes Evaluations 400,000 400,000 400,000

HRA Health & Safety 41,329 41,329 47,234

Debt Management Expenses 9,158 9,158 9,168

Total Expenditure 15,601,781 15,703,550 15,487,986

Income

Dwelling Rents (22,982,750) (22,982,750) (22,713,100)

Non-dwelling Rents (106,512) (106,512) (103,764)

Leasehold Flats and Shops Income (7,000) (7,000) (55,179)

Repairs and Maintenance (19,129) (18,315) (17,500)

Supervision and Management 0 0 (17,446)

Special Services (21,732) (25,732) (16,837)

Housing Related Support - Wardens (415,616) (415,616) (405,152)

Housing Related Support - Central Control (286,650) (286,650) (287,065)

Tenants Participation 0 0 (4,198)

Total Income (23,839,389) (23,842,575) (23,620,241)

Net Cost of Services (8,237,608) (8,139,025) (8,132,255)

Appropriations:

Movement in Impairment Provision 130,000 130,000 130,000

Capital Interest Costs 3,739,030 3,739,030 4,417,527

Investment Interest Income (326,471) (326,471) (601,738)

Depreciation 5,348,200 5,348,200 5,348,200

Contribution to HRA Reserves 35,000 35,000 35,000

Use of  Earmarked Reserves (438,000) (569,778) (779,778)

Contribution from Grant A/cs 0 (15,545) (15,545)

Contribution from HRA Balance (250,151) (201,411) (401,411)

Net Operating (Surplus) 0 0 0

39

Appendix 3



Housing Revenue Account Detail - 2023/24

Housing Revenue Account - 2023/24

Original Current Revised

List of net budgets per cost centre per directorate Budget Budget Budget

£ £ £

Comm S H002 Treasury Management Advisor 9,158            9,158           9,168            

Comm S H004 Supervision + Management 6,529,792     6,677,115     6,648,215     

Comm S H005 Dwelling Rents Income (22,982,750)  (22,982,750) (22,713,100)  

Comm S H006 Non-Dwelling Rents Income (106,512)       (106,512)      (103,764)      

Comm S H010 Tenants Participation 85,261          85,261         84,732          

Comm S H011 Special Services 977,751        977,751       663,234        

Comm S H017 Leasehold Flats (7,000)           (7,000)          (45,897)        

Comm S H018 Leasehold Shops -                -               (9,282)          

Comm S H021 Housing Related Support - Wardens 360,337        360,337       356,273        

Comm S H022 Housing Related Support - Central Control 101,413        101,413       228,027        

Comm S H025 HRA Health & Safety 41,329          41,329         47,234          

Total for Community Services Directorate (14,991,221)  (14,843,898) (14,835,160)  

D/Fly H001 Repairs + Maintenance 6,079,067     6,030,327     6,077,103     

D/Fly H003 Rents, Rates, Taxes + Other Charges 225,802        225,802       225,802        

D/Fly H019 New Build Schemes Evaluations 400,000        400,000       400,000        

D/Fly H024 Director of Property + Construction 48,744          48,744         -               

Total for Dragonfly Services 6,753,613     6,704,873     6,702,905     

Total Net Cost of BDC Housing Revenue Account Services (8,237,608)    (8,139,025)   (8,132,255)    

24/11/2340

Appendix 4



CAPITAL PROGRAMME SUMMARY

Original Current Revised

Budget Budget Budget

2023/24 2023/24 2023/24

£ £ £

General Fund
Asset Management Plan

Investment Properties 0 82,391 82,391

Leisure Buildings 0 590 590

Pleasley Vale Business Park 0 25,547 24,547

Riverside Depot 0 18,949 18,949

The Arc 0 26,310 26,310

The Tangent 0 15,803 15,803

Contact Centres 0 11,098 11,098

Asset Management Plan not yet allocated to 

an individual  scheme
260,000 176,282 176,282

260,000 356,970 355,970

Engineering Asset Management Plan

Car Parks 25,000 25,000 25,000

Shelters 10,000 10,000 10,000

Lighting 15,000 15,000 15,000

50,000 50,000 50,000

Assets

Pleasley Vale - Storm Babet 0 1,000,000 1,000,000

Pleasley Vale Mill - Dam Wall 0 100,410 100,410

Land at Portland Street 0 47,076 47,076

Shirebrook Crematorium 6,886,414 8,142,573 5,431,603

Cultral Business and Skills Hub 50,211 50,211 50,211

USSPF - Oxcroft House Refuribshment 0 0 55,806

6,936,625 9,340,270 6,685,106

ICT Schemes

ICT infrastructure 332,000 610,963 610,963

HR & Payroll System upgrade 0 18,000 18,000

332,000 628,963 628,963

Leisure Schemes

Playing Pitch Improvements (Clowne) 0 100,953 100,953

Pleasley Vale Cycle Path 0 106,244 106,244

Go Active Café Equipment 15,000 15,000 15,000

Go Active Equipment 0 8,779 8,779

15,000 230,976 230,976

41

Appendix 5



CAPITAL PROGRAMME SUMMARY

Original Current Revised

Budget Budget Budget

2023/24 2023/24 2023/24

£ £ £

Private Sector Schemes

Disabled Facility Grants 650,000 650,000 650,000

650,000 650,000 650,000

Investment Activities
Economic Loan Fund 0 25,000 25,000
Parish Council Loans 0 0 80,000

0 25,000 105,000

Vehicles and Plant

Vehicle Replacements 1,746,000 2,444,942 2,262,721

USSPF - CCTV Bolsover 0 23,835 23,835

District CCTV 0 38,751 38,751

CAN Rangers Equipment 0 14,231 14,231

1,746,000 2,521,759 2,339,538

Total General Fund 9,989,625 13,803,938 11,045,553

Housing Revenue Account

New Build Properties

Alfreton Rd Pinxton 511,700 568,560 513,360

Ashbourne Extension 0 15,000 5,567

Bolsover Homes-yet to be allocated 4,506,386 4,820,684 3,910,684

Glapwell - Meadow View Homes 696,000 696,000 696,000

Harlesthorpe Ave Bungalow adaptation 0 152,527 152,527

Jubilee Court Bungalows 300,000 300,000 0

Keepmoat Properties at Bolsover 0 25,000 25,000

Market Close Shirebrook 1,753,072 4,151,787 4,355,669

Moorfield Lane Whaley Thorns 1,393,565 1,466,486 1,553,528

Sandy Lane/Thorpe Ave Whitwell 0 5,000 441

Woburn Close Cluster 0 0 910,000

The Woodlands 0 449,884 188,355

Valley View (2 Bungalows & extension) 0 739,559 639,559

West Street Langwith 708,333 747,076 747,076

9,869,056 14,137,563 13,697,766

Vehicle Replacements 625,500 1,193,930 1,052,883

625,500 1,193,930 1,052,883

42



CAPITAL PROGRAMME SUMMARY

Original Current Revised

Budget Budget Budget

2023/24 2023/24 2023/24

£ £ £

Public Sector Housing

Electrical Upgrades 250,000 250,000 475,000

External Door Replacements 120,000 196,976 156,976

External Wall Insulation 0 13,796 1,654

Bramley Vale 100,000 100,000 10,000

Flat Roofing 100,000 70,000 40,000

Heating Upgrades 80,000 80,000 40,000

Kitchen Replacements 220,000 244,842 288,767

Re Roofing 750,000 750,000 750,000

Property Services Mgmt. & Admin 125,496 125,496 125,496

Safe & Warm 2,922,704 3,771,665 3,720,834

Soffit and Facia 30,000 60,000 52,515

Unforeseen Reactive Capital Works 100,000 102,900 50,284

Welfare Adaptations 400,000 523,991 423,991

Wet Rooms (Bungalows) 150,000 150,000 300,000

House Fire / Flood Damage (Insurance) 0 10,000 10,000

5,348,200 6,449,666 6,445,517

HRA ICT Schemes

Open Housing 0 50,605 50,605

0 50,605 50,605

New Bolsover Scheme

New Bolsover-Regeneration Scheme 0 15,374 1,264

0 15,374 1,264

Total HRA 15,842,756 21,847,138 21,248,035

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 25,832,381 35,651,076 32,293,588

43



CAPITAL PROGRAMME SUMMARY

Original Current Revised

Budget Budget Budget

2023/24 2023/24 2023/24

£ £ £

Capital Financing
General Fund

Better Care Fund (650,000) (650,000) (650,000)

Prudential Borrowing (3,632,012) (8,142,573) (5,431,603)

Reserves (2,403,000) (3,501,538) (3,398,322)

Capital Receipts (3,254,402) (152,584) (152,584)

External Funding (50,211) (1,357,243) (1,413,044)

(9,989,625) (13,803,938) (11,045,553)

HRA

Major Repairs Allowance (5,348,200) (6,289,015) (6,421,407)

Prudential Borrowing (8,264,471) (8,796,613) (8,223,593)

Reserves (1,946,752) (5,126,861) (4,604,226)

Capital Receipts (283,333) (899,660) (1,253,820)

External Funding 0 (734,989) (744,989)

(15,842,756) (21,847,138) (21,248,035)

TOTAL CAPITAL FINANCING (25,832,381) (35,651,076) (32,293,588)

44


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Ambition Plan Targets Performance Update - July to September 2023 (Q2)
	Exec  Q2 Performance Appendix 1

	6 To receive £100,000 from DCC Public Health to support the emotional health and well-being of children and young people which will benefit the whole of the district.
	7 Medium-Term Financial Plan - Revised Budgets 2023/24
	Appendix 1 GF summary
	Appendix 2 GF detail
	Appendix 3 HRA
	Appendix 4 HRA detail
	Appendix 5 Capital


